
1 of 2 
 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
June 23, 2016 

 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts___Longanecker ___Crooks ___Troutner ___ Brown ___ Crist 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Agenda Approval 
5. Approve City Council Meeting Minutes June 9, 2016 
 
Regular Agenda 
6. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

7. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
8. Presentation from Johnson County regarding the ¼-cent public safety sales tax to fund 

construction of a new county courthouse and a coroner facility 
 

9. Presentation from Miami County Conservation District regarding grant for Hillsdale Lake 
Water Conservation and Awareness Grant 

 
10. Discussion regarding Beekeeping within the City Limits 
 
Business Requiring Action 
11. CONSIDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR STREET SWEEPER 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
12. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 

(b) (2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN THE 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR  

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

 



2 of 2 
 

13. CONSIDER AN AGREEMENT WITH BURNS & MCDONNELL/CAS CONSTRUCTION 
ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
14. CONSIDER AN AGREEMENT WITH BG CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION 

ADMINISTRATION AND OBSERVATION SERVICES FOR THE EDGERTON 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PUMP STATION AND FORCE MAIN 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
15. Report by the City Administrator 
 
16. Report by the Mayor 

 
17. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

 June 25th 8:00 PM – Downtown Summer Movie Night (Minions) 
 June 30th 7:00 PM – City Council Budget Work Session 
 July 3rd 6:00 PM (Fireworks 9:45 PM) – Community Picnic and Firework Show (rainout 

day July 5th) 
 July 4th – City Offices CLOSED 
 July 12th 7:00 PM – Planning Commission Meeting 
 July 14th 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 

 
18. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ______ 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 1 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

June 9, 2016 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, 

Kansas on June 9, 2016.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding, and 
City Clerk Janeice L. Rawles recording. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Charlie Troutner  present 
Darius Crist  present 
Cindy Crooks  present 
Jody Brown  present 
 
Clay Longanecker  absent 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance:  Community Development Director Kenny Cook    
    City Attorney Patrick Reavey 
    Utilities Superintendent Mike Mabrey 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
    Parks & Recreation Coordinator Tegan Meadors 
    Johnson County Sheriff Dept. Representative  
                                  

2.  WELCOME  
         
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 MAYOR ROBERTS INTRODUCED BATTILION CHIEF KELLER TO PRESENT INFORMATION ABOUT THE   
 NEW FIRE TRUCKS THAT THE DISTRICT HAS PURCHASED.  THEY HAVE THE NEW EDGERTON TRUCK 
 HERE TONIGHT AND WOULD LIKE TO SHOW IT OFF.  MAYOR ROBERTS RECESSED THE MEETING  
 FOR FIFTEEN MINUTES.  MEETING RECESSED AT 7:03, AND CALLED BACK TO ORDER AT 7:18 PM. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  
4.  The agenda for June 9, 2016 was considered. 
5. City Council meeting Minutes of May 26, 2016 was considered. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to approve the consent agenda. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
6.    PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 NONE 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 2 
 
7. DECLARATION 
 
 None 
    
8. PRESENTATION FROM SOUTHWEST JOHNSON COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

REGARDING THE 2017 BUDGET. 
 
 Greg Martinette, Southwest Johnson County Economic Development Corporation was present to 

review the 2017 Budget.  There was discussion about how many dollars to put in the budget for 
2017.  The past three years we have budgeted $35,000.00 and this year they are asking for more. 
The general consensus of the city council was to budget $45,000 - $50,000. 

 
9. PRESENTATION FROM GARDNER EDGERTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE REGARDING 2017 

BUDGET.  
 
 Jason Camis, President of Gardner Edgerton Chamber of Commerce was here to present 

information regarding the 2017 budget.   He explained about the community guide and the map, as 
well as the membership fee.  The community guide would need $2000.00 from the City of 
Edgerton, and the Map would be an additional $1000.00.  It was a decision of the council to do an 
agreement for fees and what the chamber does for us and to have one amount for Economic 
Development.  The total amount to be budgeted is $50,000.00.   

 
 BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
  SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR TORNADO ALLEY/DOGS 
   
10. SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR TORNADO ALLEY HUNDESPORT WAS CONSIDERED. 
 
 Beth Linn, City Administrator introduced Tegan Meadors, Park and Recreation Coordinator, who 

explained about the use of the soccer field for Tornado Alley Hundesport.  Tornado Alley 
Hundesport is a local club that has used the soccer field at Martin Creek Park for several years to 
host dog training practices and competitions.  Based on concerns staff requested that Tornado 
Alley apply for a special event permit for their requested use of the park.  The special event permit 
is for two types of use of the park, practice held weekly on Saturday and Sunday afternoons and an 
event held twice per year that would actually reserve the soccer field.  The conflicts and concerns 
from staff are dogs being off leash during the exercises/training is violation of city code as they are 
on public property, The nature of the training/exercises is a concern, and The lack of insurance 
provided by the club for this type of activity on city property.  The recommendation of the staff is 
to deny the request for special use permit for Tornado Alley Hundesport, including weekly training 
events and competitions. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Troutner, to deny the request for special use permit for Tornado 

Alley Hundesport. 
 
 Motion approved 4-0. 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 3 
 RESOLUTION NO. 06-09-16A    
 
11. RESOLUTION NO. 06-09-16A CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE LEASE, LEASE 

AGREEMENT AND RELATED BOND DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL 
REVENUE BONDS (ELHC I, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2013 WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 The City of Edgerton issued industrial revenue bonds for the ELHC 1 project on September 30. 

2013.  ELHC 1, LLC leased the Project to the City and the City subleased the project back to ELHC 1, 
LLC.  Flexsteel Industries, Inc. acquired the project from ELHC in a 1031 exchange in September 
2014.  ELHC 1 LLC transferred its interest in the project to Eagle Exchange with the consent of the 
City.  Flexsteel is now requesting that the project be transferred from Eagle Exchange to Flexsteel.   

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Troutner to approve Resolution NO 06-09-16A. 
 
 Motion approved 4-0, 

 
  ORDINANCE NO 1017 IRB’S 
 
12. ORDINANCE NO. 1017 AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO ISSUE INDUSTRIAL 

REVENUE BONDS (TRANSPEC LESING INCORPORATED PROJECT ) SERIES 2016, IN AN AGGREGATE 
MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $19,000,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 
FUNDS TO PAY THE COST OF ACQUIRING, PURCHASING, CONSTRUCTING, INSTALLING AND 
EQUIPPNG A COMMERCIAL PROJECT, CONSISTING OF A SURFACE CONTAINER STORAGE LOT, 
INCLUDING BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, IMPROVEMENTS, FIXTURES, MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A TRUST INDENTURE WITH SECURITY BANK 
OF KANSAS CITY, AS TRUSTEE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A BASE LEASE AND A 
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TRANSPEC LEASING INCIRPORATED; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER 
INTO A BOND PURCHASE  AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE BONDS, AND AUTHORIZING 
AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND THE TAKING OF OTHER 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Transpec Leasing Incorporated LLC Project at the southwest corner of 191st and Waverly Road in 

Edgerton, Kansas will be both the lessee on the project and the owner of the bonds.   The 
Ordinance authorizes the City to enter into the following documents: Trust Indenture, Base Lease 
Agreement, Lease Agreement and Bond Purchase Agreement whereby Transpec Leasing 
Incorporated agrees to acquire the Bonds. 

 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Crist, to approve Ordinance #1017. 
 
 Motion approved 4-0. 
 
  ORDINANCE NO. 1018  IRB’S 
  
13. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1018 AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO ISSUE 

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (CY EDGERTON LLC PROJECT) SERIES 2016, IN AN AGGREGATE 
MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $8,000,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 
FUNDS TO PAY THE COST OF ACQUIRING, PURCHASING, CONSTRUCTING, INSTALLING AND 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 4 
EQUIPPING A COMMERCIAL PROJECT, CONSISTING OF A SURFACE CONTAINER STORAGE LOT, 
INCLUDING LAND, BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, IMPROVEMENTS, FIXTURES, MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A TRUST INDENTURE WITH SECURITY BANK 
OF KANSAS CITY, AS TRUSTEE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A BASE LEASE AND A 
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH CY EDGERTON LLC; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A BOND 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE BONDS, AND AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 This Ordinance No. 1018 authorizes the City to issue industrial revenue bonds for the project.  CY 

Edgerton will be both the lessee on the project and the owner of the bonds.  CY Edgerton is 
constructing a surface container storage lot and making improvements to buildings currently 
located at the project site at 32355 W. 191st Street in Edgerton, Kansas. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Crist to approve Ordinance No 1018. 
 
 Motion approved 4-0. 
 
  STREET SWEEPER 
 
14. REPLACEMENT OF STREET SWEEPER WAS CONSIDERED 
 Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent was present to provide information to Mayor and 

Council about our current street sweeper.  It is a 1992 Elgin Pelican with 11,534 miles and 4957 
hours.  The public works staff has demoed and thoroughly looked at all the proposed machines.  A 
selection committee of the equipment operators reviewed the proposed bids, identified the pros 
and cons of each respective machine and with this date they made their selection. The 
recommendation from the staff is a new Elgin Broom Badger mounted on an Isuzu NRR Cab and 
Chassis, and their suggestion is that the new machine is wrapped in a city approved logo, which 
would be provided to the city at no additional cost.  

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Troutner, to approve the lease to purchase of a new street 

sweeper subject to approval of lease agreement. 
 
 Motion approved 4-0. 
 
  BURNS & MCDONNELL/CAS CONSTRUCTION  

  
15. AGREEMENT WITH BURNS AND MCDONNELL/CAS CONSTRUCTION ON THE BASIS OF A 

STIPULATED PRICE WAS CONSIDERED. 
 
 This agreement is about the new pump station in place of the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment 

Plant.  There was conversation back and forth about the changes in the project cost.  Jeff Keller 
outlined the prices and the items that were cut to lower the price, however the council  put a 
couple of items back in for safety reasons.  They had conversation about the warranty period and 
how long it would be. 

 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 5 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Crist, to add the VFD’s and the HVAC back in to the price and table 

this item until the next meeting with the changes made.   
 
 Motion approved 4-0 
 
 Mayor offered thanks to Kevin O’Brien for being present to answer any insurance questions. 
 
16.   REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 City Administrator, Beth Linn talked about the need to remove some playground equipment at the 

Glendall Acres Park.  On May 31, 2016 city staff conducted a Playground Safety Audit at all city 
parks to determine if the play areas were compliant with ASTM F1487 (the safety standards for all 
playground equipment and protective surfacing).  Through the inspection staff found hazards that 
need to be removed.   

 
 Motion by Troutner, seconded by Brown, to remove the two pieces of equipment that have been 

identified as a hazard. 
 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
17. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
 Mayor advised that the ribbon cutting for the Waverly Road Project will be on u-tube.  The Mayor 

also advised that we have three new cranes at the BNSF Intermodal facility.  Reminders about the 
Festival on the Trails and Frontier Days, a booth will be set up at both to sign cards for Judy Hart. 

      
18. FUTURE MEETING/EVENT REMINDERS: 
 
 June 14th 7:00 pm – Planning commission 
 June 15th Noon- Senior Lunch 
 June 17-18 – Frontier Days 
 June 23rd 7:00 pm City Council Meeting 
 June 25th 8:00 pm Downtown Summer Movie Night (Minions) 
 June 30th – City Council Budget Work Session 
 July 3rd 6:00 pm (Fireworks 9:45) – Community Picnic and Firework Show (rainout date July 5th) 
 
19. RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (B) (2) FOR CONSULTATION 

WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE  
CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
 No executive session was necessary. 
 
20. ADJOURN    Motion: Troutner     Second: Brown       Vote     4-0 
 
 Meeting adjourned at 9:30 pm. 
 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
June 9, 2016 

Page 6 
__________________________________________ 
           Janeice L. Rawles, CMC 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 Approved by the Governing Body on ________________________________ 
 
  



2017 City of Edgerton Funding Request: $2,500 
June 20, 2016 

Prepared By: Lesley Rigney, District Manager 

The conservation district, in its 70th year, is adapting to the changing needs of the 
area and has successfully pursued and secured additional resources for both Johnson 
and Miami County’s valuable water and agricultural resources. Please consider joining 
the two counties and the other cities in the watershed to raise the local match for this 
three-year project. 

In addition to traditional conservation district activities, such as administering cost-
share programs and promoting/facilitating conservation practices, this district has 
stepped outside of the box in several ways. 

• Eastern Kansas Prescribed Burn Association: Formed to safely facilitate prescribed 
burns in the county to enhance grasslands and control woody encroachment.  

• Hillsdale Lake Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) Grant: 
Three-year grant to do monitoring, education and conservation practices in the 
watershed, specifically aimed at reducing the amount of phosphorous entering the 
lake. Total project cost: $387,152 ($232,291 grant, $154,861 local match).  

• School Programs: Designed in cooperation with local science teachers to enhance 
curriculum with hands-on education. Quote from local teacher (Louisburg): 

“I can't thank the Conservation District enough for the educational opportunities they provided 
for my students.  The pollinator garden was such a neat experience for the kids.  They got to sort 
their plant seeds, using magnifying glasses. Once the seeds were sorted, each child was able to 
choose what flower they wanted to plant.  They planted their seeds, watered them, and watched 
their daily growth.  The fun didn't stop there.  Planter boxes were built outside of our classroom. 
The kids got to fill the planter with dirt and plant their starter plants. Our flowers look awesome 
and we enjoy watching them change and grow, daily. This was an experience that they still talk 
about and many wrote it down as their favorite memory from Fifth grade. Thank you for 
providing a fun, hands-on, cross-curricular educational experience for my students.”  

100 Angela Street, Ste 3   Paola, KS 66071   913-294-3751 Ext. 3



Miami County Conservation District 

Board Members: 

Lyle Wobker, Chair - Farmer, livestock producer and former county 
commissioner. Serves in leadership capacity on numerous water resources and 
conservation boards in the area. 

John Nichols, Vice-Chair - Farmer, livestock producer and retired FFA teacher. 
Certifies Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) stands for local Farm Service 
Agency (FSA). 

Dwayne Beckford, Treasurer - Landowner and retired FFA teacher. 
Spearheading local prescribed burn association to re-claim grasslands from 
cedar and other woody invasion. 

Merle Kaiser, Member - Farmer and livestock producer. With family, earned 
numerous awards for agricultural and livestock-related conservation practices. 

Pansy Bigley, Member - Farmer, livestock producer and retired teacher. As a 
new member is promoting more thoughtful management of grasslands and 
CRP buffers. 

Staff: 

Lesley Rigney, District Manager - Watershed/environmental planner with 10+ 
years’ experience, Master’s Degree in Public Administration (MPA), and from a 
local farming family. Dedicated to conservation principles, to educating others 
and to responsible stewardship of public funding. 

Robert Allen, NRCS Technician - Local conservation technician with over 30 
years’ experience designing, managing and inspecting cropland and livestock 
practices. Trusted by producers in the county, an asset to the conservation 
efforts. 

Jose Mendoza, NRCS Supervisory District Conservationist - Area soil health, no-
till and cover crop expert. Experienced with federal cost-share programs - EQIP, 
CSP and special initiatives - that will enhance the effectiveness and affordability 
of conservation practices in the county. 

100 Angela Street, Ste 3   Paola, KS 66071   913-294-3751 Ext. 3



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Discussion regarding Beekeeping within the City Limits 

 

Department:  Community Development 

  

Background/Description of Item: During a City Council meeting, Council Member Troutner requested 
that beekeeping within the city limits be added to a future council meeting agenda. City Council directed 
staff to research industry standards, any relevant state statutes, best practices from other communities, 
etc.  
 
Please find enclosed with the packet a memo of research compiled by staff regarding beekeeping including 
a recent article from the League of Kansas Municipalities magazine and a model ordinance from the state 
of Louisiana.  
 
Additionally, staff has arranged to have members of the Northeastern Kansas Beekeepers Association 
(NEKBA) present at the June 23, 2016 City Council meeting to serve as experts with regard to beekeeping 
and answer questions from City Council. For more information about NEKBA, please see their website at   
http://www.nekba.org/.  
 
Enclosure: Memo to City Council 
 League of Kansas Municipalities article regarding Municipal Regulations on beekeeping 

 Model Beekeeping Ordinance from Louisiana 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:   

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: June 20, 2016 

http://www.nekba.org/




















Model 
Beekeeping 
Ordinance 
for Louisiana Local and 
Municipal Governments

This publication is intended to help local 
and municipal governments address potential 
concerns or problems between the public 
and beekeepers. It was adopted from the 
Texas beekeeping ordinance and modified 
by the Louisiana Beekeepers Association, the 
Louisiana Department of Agriculture and 
Forestry (LDAF), the USDA/ARS Honey Bee 
Breeding Genetic and Physiology Lab and the 
Louisiana Cooperative Extension Service. 
Because the honeybee industry is vital to 
Louisiana agriculture, the four organizations 
are willing to assist any local, municipal state 
government in the use or implementation of 
this program.



Proposed Model Beekeeping Ordinance 
for Louisiana Local and Municipal Governments

Whereas, honeybees are of benefit to mankind, and to Louisiana in particular, by providing agriculture, 
fruit and garden pollination services and by furnishing honey, wax and other useful products; and

Whereas, Louisiana is among the leading states in honey production and agricultural byproducts 
associated with beekeeping throughout the United States; and

Whereas, domestic strains of honeybees have been selectively bred for desirable traits, including 
gentleness, honey production, tendency not to swarm and nonaggressive behavior, characteristics that are 
desirable to foster and maintain; and 

Whereas, gentle strains of honeybees can be maintained within populated areas in reasonable densities 
without causing a nuisance if the bees are properly located and carefully managed and maintained;

Now, Therefore, Be It Ordained and Enacted By 

____________________________________________________________________
(Insert name of governmental entity)

Section 1.  That the findings contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted as a part of this 
ordinance.

Section 2.  That Chapter No.    ________________ (Health) of the Code of Ordinances, 

__________________________________ (city), _______________________ (state),   is hereby 

amended by adding a new article No., which reads as follows:

Definitions
As used in this article, the following words and terms 

shall have the meanings ascribed in this section unless the 
context of their usage clearly indicates another meaning:
1.  “Apiary” means the assembly of one or more 

colonies of bees at a single location.
2.  “Beekeeper” means a person who owns or has 

charge of one or more colonies of bees.
3.  “Beekeeping equipment” means anything used in the 

operation of an apiary, such as hive bodies, supers, 
frames, top and bottom boards and extractors.

4.  “Colony” or “hive” means an aggregate of bees 
consisting principally of workers, but having, when 
perfect, one queen and at times many drones, 
including brood, combs, honey and the receptacle 
inhabited by the bees.

5.  “Honeybee” means all life stages of the common 
domestic honey bee, Apis mellifera species.

6.  “Tract” means a contiguous parcel of land under 
common ownership.

7.  “Undeveloped property” means any idle land that 
is not improved or actually in the process of being 
improved with residential, commercial, industrial, 

church, park, school or governmental facilities or 
other structures or improvements intended for 
human use occupancy and the grounds maintained in 
association therewith. The term shall be deemed to 
include property developed exclusively as a street or 
highway or property used for commercial agricultural 
purposes.

Certain Conduct 
Declared Unlawful
(a)  The purpose of this article is to establish certain 

requirements of sound beekeeping practice that are 
intended to avoid problems that may otherwise be 
associated with the keeping of bees in populated 
areas.

(b)  Notwithstanding compliance with the various 
requirements of this article, it shall be unlawful for 
any beekeeper to keep any colony or colonies in 
such a manner or of such disposition as to cause any 
unhealthy condition, interfere with the normal use 
and enjoyment of human or animal life of others or 
interfere with the normal use and enjoyment of any 
public property or property of others.



Hive Registration 
All honey bee colonies shall be registered annually 

with the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and 
Forestry. IT IS THE LAW!

Hive Type 
All honey bee colonies shall be kept in Langstroth-

type hives with removable frames, which shall be kept in 
sound and usable condition.

Fencing of Flyways
In each instance in which any colony is situated 

within 25 feet of a public or private property line of the 
tract upon which the apiary is situated, as measured from 
the nearest point on the hive to the property line, the 
beekeeper shall establish and maintain a flyway barrier at 
least 6 feet in height consisting of a solid wall, fence, dense 
vegetation or combination thereof that is parallel to the 
property line and extends 10 feet beyond the colony 
in each direction so that all bees are forced to fly at an 
elevation of at least 6 feet above ground level over the 
property lines in the vicinity of the apiary. It is a defense 
against prosecution under this section that the property 
adjoining the apiary tract in the vicinity of the apiary is 
undeveloped property for a distance of at least 25 feet 
from the property line of the apiary tract.

Water
Each beekeeper shall ensure that a convenient 

source of water is available to the bees at all times during 
the year so that the bees will not congregate at swimming 
pools, bibcocks, pet watering bowls, bird baths or other 
water sources where they may cause human, bird or 
domestic pet contact.

General Maintenance
Each beekeeper shall ensure that no bee comb 

or other materials that might encourage robbing are 
left upon the grounds of the apiary site. Upon their 
removal from the hive, all such materials shall promptly 
be disposed of in a sealed container or placed within a 
building or other bee-proof enclosure.

Queens
All colonies shall be maintained with marked 

queens. In any instance in which a colony exhibits unusual 
aggressive characteristics by stinging or attempting to 
sting without due provocation or exhibits an unusual 
disposition toward swarming, it shall be the duty of 
the beekeeper to promptly re-queen the colony with 

another marked queen. Queens shall be selected from 
European stock bred for gentleness and nonswarming 
characteristics.

Colony Densities
(a) It shall be unlawful to keep more than the following 

number of colonies on any tract within the city, based 
upon the size or configuration of the tract on which 
the apiary is situated:
1.  One-quarter acre or less tract size – two colonies. 
2.  More than one-quarter acre but less than one-half 

acre tract size – four colonies. 
3.  More than one-half acre but less than 1 acre tract 

size – six colonies. 
4.  One acre or larger tract size – eight colonies. 
5.  Regardless of tract size, where all hives are 

situated at least 200 feet in any direction from all 
property lines of the tract on which the apiary is 
situated, there shall be no limit to the number of 
colonies.

6.  Regardless of tract size, so long as all property 
other than the tract upon which the hives are 
situated – that is, within a radius of at least 
200 feet from any hive – remains undeveloped 
property, there shall be no limit to the number of 
colonies. 

(b)  For each two colonies authorized under Colony 
Densities [subsection (a)] there may be maintained 
upon the same tract one nucleus colony in a hive 
structure not exceeding one standard 9 5/8 inch 
depth 10-frame hive body with no supers attached 
as required from time to time for management of 
swarms. Each such nucleus colony shall be disposed 
of or combined with an authorized colony within 30 
days after the date is acquired.

Marking Hives, 
Presumption of Beekeeping 
(a)  In apiaries the beekeeper shall conspicuously post a 

sign setting forth his name and telephone number. In 
addition, the beekeeper’s registration yard marker, 
provided by the LDAF, shall be posted on a sign 
within the apiary. It is a defense against prosecution 
under this subsection that a colony is kept upon the 
same tract upon which the owner resides.

(b)  Unless marked in accordance with subsection (a) it 
shall be presumed for purposes of this article that 
the beekeeper is the person or persons who own 
or otherwise have the present right of possession 
and control of the tract upon which a hive or hives 
are situated. The presumption may be rebutted by 
a written agreement authorizing another person 
to maintain the colony or colonies upon the tract 
setting forth the name, address and telephone 
number of the other person who is acting as the 
beekeeper.



Inspection 
The health officer shall have the right to inspect any 

apiary between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. Where practicable, prior 
notice shall be given to the beekeeper if he resides at the 
apiary or if his name is marked on the hives.

Compliance 
(a) Upon receipt of information that any colony situated 

within the city is not being kept in compliance with 
this article, the director shall initiate an investigation. 
If he finds grounds to believe that one or more 
violations have occurred, he will have a written notice 
of a hearing issued to the beekeeper.

(b) The notice of a hearing shall set forth: 
1.  The date, time and place at which the hearing will 

be conducted. 
2.  The violation(s) alleged. 
3.  That the beekeeper may appear in person or 

through counsel, present evidence, cross-examine 
witnesses and request a court reporter as 
provided by Rule No.  ______ of the city council’s 
rules of procedure. 

4.  That the bees may be ordered destroyed or 
removed from the city if the hearing officer finds 
that they have been kept in violation of this article.

 Notices shall be given by certified U. S. mail or 
personal delivery. If the health officer is unable 
to locate the beekeeper, however, the notice may 
be given by publication one time in a newspaper 
of general circulation at least five days before the 
date of the hearing. 

(c)  The hearing shall be conducted by the director or a 
designated health officer. The burden shall be on the 
city to demonstrate by a preponderance of credible 
evidence that the colony or colonies have in fact been 
kept in violation of this article. If the hearing officer 
finds that the colony or colonies have been kept in 
violation of this article, he may order that the bees be 
destroyed or removed from the city, not to exceed 
20 days and that bees not thereafter be kept upon 
the tract for a period of two years. 

 In instances where the hearing officer finds that 
the violations were not intentional and that the 
beekeeper has taken corrective actions to cure 
the alleged violations, he may issue a warning in 
lieu of ordering the bees destroyed or removed. 
Upon failure of the beekeeper to comply with the 
order, the health officer may cause the bees to be 
destroyed and the hive structures to be removed. In 
each instance in which a bee colony is destroyed, all 
usable components of the hive structure that are not 
damaged or rendered unhealthy by the destruction 
of the bees shall upon the beekeeper’s request 
be returned to the beekeeper, provided that the 
beekeeper agrees to bear all transportation expenses 
for their return. 

(d)  The decision of the hearing officer may be appealed 
in accordance with the provision of Rule No.  of the 
city council’s rules and procedures by filing a notice 
of appeal with the city secretary within 10 days 
following the date that the hearing officer announces 
his decision, or if the decision is not announced at the 
conclusion of the hearing, within 15 days following at 
the date the hearing officer places written notice of 
his decision in the mail to the beekeeper. An appeal 
shall not stay in the hearing officer’s decision, and 
it shall not be the responsibility of the beekeeper 
to remove the bees from the city pending the 
determination of the appeal. 

\(e)  The provisions of this section shall not be 
construed to require the conduct of a hearing for 
the destruction of (1) any bee colony not residing 
in a hive structure intended for beekeeping or (2) 
any swarm of bees or (3) any colony residing in a 
standard or man-made hive, which by virtue of its 
condition, has obviously been abandoned by the 
beekeeper. 

Section 3. If any provisions, section, subsection, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance or the 
application of same to any person or set of circumstances 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void or 
invalid, the validity of the remaining portions of this 
ordinance or their application to other persons or sets of 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby, it being the 
intent of the city council in adopting this ordinance that 
no portion hereof or provision or regulation contained 
herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any 
unconstitutionality, voidness or invalidity of any other 
portion hereof, and all provisions of this ordinance are 
declared to be servable for the purpose. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective at       
__________ (hour) on  ________________ (date). 

Section 5. There exists a public emergency 
requiring that this ordinance be passed finally on the date 
of its introduction as requested in writing by the mayor; 
therefore, this ordinance shall be passed finally on such 
date and shall take effect as provided in Section 4, above.

Passed and approved this __________________ 
day of 20____.

_________________________________________ 
(Mayor)

Author:  Dale K. Pollet, Specialist (Entomology)

Visit out Web site:   www.lsuagcenter.com
Louisiana State University Agricultural Center

William B. Richardson, Chancellor
Louisiana Agricultural Experiment Station
David J. Boethel, Vice Chancellor and Director
Louisiana Cooperative Extension Service

Paul D. Coreil, Vice Chancellor and Director
 Pub. 2524 (online only) 9/09 Rev.

The LSU AgCenter provides equal opportunities in programs and 
employment.











































































THIS ITEM WAS TABLED FROM JUNE 9TH MEETING.  
NEW INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN RED TEXT.   

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider an Agreement with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction On The Basis Of A 
Stipulated Price 

 

Department:  Utilities 

  

Background/Description of Item: In June 2014, the City of Edgerton received the Kansas Water 
Pollution Control Permit for the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Facility (EWWTF). Section E of this permit 
(Schedule of Compliance) listed several requirements from the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment (KDHE) including significantly more stringent nutrient removal requirements for plant 
effluent. Edgerton WWTF was constructed in 1981. Significant construction and upgrade would be required 
at EEWTF to meet the nutrient removal standards required by KDHE.  
 
In January 2015, city staff together with City Engineer presented to City Council an alternate plan to 
remove the existing EWWTF out of service by June 30, 2019 by installing a pump station and force main 
to transport the sewage to the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Facility (BBC WWTF). Edgerton City 
Council approved Resolution No. 01-22-15A in support of this concept. This alternate approach was 
approved by Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE).  
 
In November 2015, Edgerton City Council approved a Preliminary Design-Build Agreement with Burns & 
McDonnell/CAS Construction in the amount of $200,800. The Preliminary Design-Build Agreement states 
the Contractor shall design the project to approximately 30% of the Project, which will enable the 
Contractor to determine a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for construction of the project.  
 
Please find enclosed the Executive Summary submitted by Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction for 
consideration by City Council. The Executive Summary of the Work includes a description of the scope of 
work included in this agreement. It also includes the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of $2,787,950. A 
detailed item breakdown of this price proposal is included. Four items in the GMP are listed as allowances. 
These items the City is responsible for actual costs (either higher or lower than amount listed). 
 
This agreement does not include the contract amount for preliminary work ($200,800) to develop the 
GMP. Assuming the estimates for the allowance items are correct, total project expenses for design and 
construction would be $2,988,750. This amount does not include city engineer expenses or construction 
inspection costs. Staff would recommend using BG Consultants for inspection and anticipates bringing that 
contract for services for consideration by City Council at June 9th meeting.  
 
In February 2016, City Council approved a Charter Ordinance to exempt the City from state statute 
provisions regarding the issuance of bonds for the purpose of paying for sanitary sewer improvements. 
That Ordinance provides the City of Edgerton flexibility to use general obligation bonds for the construction 
of this project. Additionally, the City Council took the first step in that process by approving a resolution 
to authorize the offering for sale of general obligation bonds for this project. Following the closing of the 
60-day waiting period after publication of the Charter Ordinance, staff anticipates bringing the resolution 
to authorize the project and bonds to the July 14th City Council meeting together with approving the sale 
of the bonds that same meeting.  
 



THIS ITEM WAS TABLED FROM JUNE 9TH MEETING.  
NEW INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN RED TEXT.   

City Attorney/City’s Insurance Representative have reviewed the design-build agreement and terms and 
conditions. City Attorney and D/B team are still negotiating final terms and conditions. Previous Agreement 
is available upon request from the City Clerk as the document over 100 pages. City Attorney will review 
updates for City Council during May 26, 2016 meeting. Additionally, City Engineer and Design-Build team 
will be present for questions.   
 
This item was tabled at the June 9, 2016 City Council meeting. New information was not 
finalized at time of packet publication. This item will be updated and republished on Tuesday, 
June 21st.  
 

Enclosures: Executive Summary  

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve an Agreement with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction On the Basis Of 

A Stipulated Price with Guaranteed Maximum Price at $2,787,950. 

 

Funding Source: General Obligation Bonds Series 2016 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: May 23, 2016 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

May 23, 2016 

City of Edgerton, KS Pump Station and Force Main Work- 

Price - $2,700,500.00 
 
Executive summary of work - 

• 100% Performance and payment bonds  
• GL, UL, PL and builders risk insurance included 
• Prevailing wages are not required for this contract. 
• Sales tax exemption certificate to be provided by City.   
• Phase 1 services is a separate agreement will be billed separately and is not included in this price 
• Includes all labor, materials, equipment and supervision to complete the scope of the work 
• Includes all design and construction administration fees for the work 
• Trees along force main route will be cleared prior to June1 as a part of the Phase 1 services 

agreement 
• Relocation of existing salt/sand storage building 
• New wetwell and drywell areas to be fenced and secured 
• Manholes and piping necessary to direct flow to the new wetwell before the existing plant. 
• New wetwell and drywell structures.   
• Mechanical basket screen system to remove trash from wetwell prior to pumping 
• Wetwell submersible pumps in series with drywell pumps connecting to new force main. 
• Both wetwell and drywell will be ready for installation of third set of pumps when need dictates.  
• Includes approximately 13,500lf of HDPE force main, directional drilling of the creek crossing, air 

release valves/vaults, pipeline cleanouts, pressure regulating valve and tie into existing manhole 
for routing to Big Bull Creek WWTP. 

• Site and force main route will be clean, fine graded and seeded upon completion.  

 

Price Breakdown 

Item Cost 
General conditions including mobilization, onsite supervision, safety, trash 
removal, haul off, material testing for soil & concrete, cell phone and data,  
Construction equipment including all excavators, cranes, wheel loaders, 
trucks, compactors, fuel and maintenance, tools for the work. 

$253,001. 

Insurances & Bonds including all performance, payment and statutory 
bonds, general liability, umbrella liability, builders risk 

$67,941. 

Site - excavation for pump stations, manholes and final piping connections 
Backfill for all excavated areas 
Yard piping and final tie-ins for the pump stations   

$72,695. 

Precast Wetwell – 13’ L x 7’W x 17’D 
Cast in Place Drywell – 20’L x 14’W x 7’D 
Manhole structures  - 3 ea.  

$171,379. 

Site fencing and concrete paving for new pump stations $58,182. 

blinn
Text Box
June 9, 2016



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Hoisting - structural frames and hoists for the exterior of wetwell and 
drywell; structural rails for each of the pumps inside the drywell for safe 
access and maintenance of pumps and valves 

$17,736. 

Force main – 13,500 lf of 8”HDPE / approx. 30% in rock 
Air Release valves and vaults – 7 ea 
Cleanouts for HDD under creek – 2 ea 
Pressure sustaining valve and vault – 1 ea at final manhole connection 

$795,004. 

Screenings – trash basket, guide rails, mechanized hoisting system $116,456. 
Pumps – 2 submersible, 2 – centrifugal, piping, valves in pump stations $192,426. 
HVAC for drywell  $19,294. 
Electrical – including a new 150kw emergency generator & ATS 
All power and control cable 
All soft starts and panelboards for pumps 
Instrumentation – Control panels , PLCs, flowmeters, software and SCADA 
revisions for monitor and control 

$428,611. 

Final Design  $144,000. 
Construction Services $121,000. 
Allowances 
 Linework – stump removal   $10,000. 
 Sand / Salt Storage building                $22,000  
 Existing Plant Decommissioning $74,000. 
 HDD Bull Creek & Quarry Drive  $136,775. 
 
 

$242,775. 

Total Contract Value $2,700,500. 
 

Allowances are items that are covered in the lump sum total contract value for the specific budget 
of the item detailed. Costs for these items (labor, material, equipment and subcontractors) will be 
tracked at cost with no markup for overhead and profit.  In the event that the costs are in excess of 
the amounts listed, the Owner shall pay such additional cost. In the event that the costs are less 
than the amounts listed, the Owner shall be entitled to the amounts remaining. Allowances included 
in the lump sum price above - 

 Linework – stump removal        $10,000. 
 Sand / Salt Storage building – all labor, material and equipment to remove and reinstall 

existing building including new concrete slab and concrete blocks       $22,000.   
 Existing Plant Decommissioning      $74,000. 
 HDD Bull Creek & Quarry Drive       $136,775. 

Items that have changed since last meeting – price reduced by $87,000 

o Moved the storage building to an allowance item 
o Changed the HVAC requirements in the drywell vault 
o Deleted one manhole and small amount of pipe for future tie in 
o Deleted the VFD’s and moved to soft starts for the pumps  
o Deleted one ARV and associated vault 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

May 23, 2016 

City of Edgerton, KS  Pump Station and Force Main Work- 

Price - $2,787,950.00 
 
Executive summary of work - 

• 100% Performance and payment bonds  
• GL, UL, PL and builders risk insurance included 
• Prevailing wages are not required for this contract. 
• Sales tax exemption certificate to be provided by City.   
• Phase 1 services is a separate agreement will be billed separately and is not included in this price 
• Includes all labor, materials, equipment and supervision to complete the scope of the work 
• Includes all design and construction administration fees for the work 
• Trees along force main route will be cleared prior to June1 as a part of the Phase 1 services 

agreement 
• Relocation of existing salt/sand storage building 
• New wetwell and drywell areas to be fenced and secured 
• Manholes and piping necessary to direct flow to the new wetwell before the existing plant. 
• New wetwell and drywell structures.   
• Mechanical basket screen system to remove trash from wetwell prior to pumping 
• Wetwell submersible pumps in series with drywell pumps connecting to new force main. 
• Both wetwell and drywell will be ready for installation of third set of pumps when need dictates.  
• Includes approximately 13,200lf of HDPE force main, directional drilling of the creek crossing, air 

release valves/vaults, pipeline cleanouts, pressure regulating valve and tie into existing manhole 
for routing to Big Bull Creek WWTP. 

• Site and force main route will be clean, fine graded and seeded upon completion.  

 

Price Breakdown 

Item Cost 
General conditions/ construction equipment/Insurances & Bonds $317,942. 
Site excavation/backfill/yard piping $81,767. 
Wetwell / Drywell / manhole structures  $131,578. 
Site fencing / paving / relocate ex. storage building $138,364. 
Hoisting $20,410. 
Force main & appurtenances $803,576 
Allowances  (detailed below) $222,775. 
Screenings  $120,855. 
Pumps / pipe / valves $199,375. 
HVAC $25,672. 
Electrical/instrumentation/controls $460,636. 
Design and Construction Administration $265,000. 
  
Total Contract Value $2,787,950. 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

• Allowances are items that are covered in the lump sum total contract value for the specific 
budget of the item detailed. Costs for these items (labor, material, equipment and 
subcontractors) will be tracked at cost with no markup for overhead and profit.  In the event 
that the costs are in excess of the amounts listed, the Owner shall pay such additional cost. In 
the event that the costs are less than the amounts listed, the Owner shall be entitled to the 
amounts remaining. Allowances included in the lump sum price above  - 

 Linework – stump removal   $10,000. 
 Concrete blocks at salt/sand storage $2,000. 
 Existing Plant Decommissioning  $74,000. 
 HDD Bull Creek & Quarry Drive   $136,775. 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider an Agreement with BG Consultants for Construction Administration and 

Observation Services for the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant Pump Station and Force Main 

 

Department:  Utilities 

  

Background/Description of Item: In November 2015, Edgerton City Council approved a Preliminary 
Design-Build Agreement with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction in the amount of $200,800. The City 
Council will consider the Design-Build Agreement at the meeting on June 23, 2016.  
 
Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) requires full-time inspection for construction of 
any sanitary sewer main and pump station. Therefore, this project will require full-time inspection. Staff is 
recommends using BG Consultants for the inspection of this project since the BG inspection team is familiar 
with the Edgerton infrastructure and the Design-Build team. Additionally, BG inspection team is already in 
Edgerton performing inspection on many other projects. This proximity allows for economies of scale in 
price. The agreement will bill based on actual hours of inspection performed. City Engineer estimates a 
range in price of $100,000 - $120,000 based on construction timeframe of six (6) months. 
 
The Agreement has not yet been reviewed by City Attorney. Staff recommends approval of the agreement 
and execution of the contract by Mayor upon approval by City Attorney.  
 

Enclosure: Draft Agreement for Construction Observation Services 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve an Agreement with BG Consultants for Construction Administration and 
Observation Services for the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant Pump Station and Force Main pending 
approval from City Attorney 

 

Funding Source: Reimbursement from Edgerton Land Holding Company 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: June 20, 2016 


























	Agenda 06-23-2016
	Minutes 06-09-2016
	Miami Conservation District
	Discussion regarding beekeeping within the city limits
	Lease Purchase Agreement for Street Sweeper
	Agreement with BG for Construction for EWWTP Pump Station
	Agreement with Burns&Mac/CAS for EEWTP Lift Station



